ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWMM TTEE
February 3, 2012
8:00 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair

Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA COWM SSI ON ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATI ON
- HEARD

STATE BOARD COF EDUCATION REPORT ON Alaska PERFORMANCE
SCHOLARSHI P QUTCOMES

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Education

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the APS Report Sunmmary.

BRI AN RAE, Assistant Director

Research and Anal ysi s

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Education

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the APS Report Summary.

ESTHER J. COX, Chair
Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 3, 2012



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the Annual Report and Sunmmary.

M KE HANLEY, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education & Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the Annual
Report .

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:00: 35 AM

COCHAIR JCE THOVAS <called the Senate FEducation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Vice-Chair Davis, Co-Chair
Thomas and Co-Chair Meyer.

Al aska Conm ssi on on Postsecondary Educati onAl aska Perfornance

Schol arshi p Qut cones Report
CO CHAI R THOVAS announced that the first order of business would
be to hear an overview of the Alaska Performance Schol arship
Qutcones Report by the Alaska Comm ssion of Postsecondary
Educati on, Al aska Department of Education & Early Devel oprent,
Al aska Departnent of Labor and W rkforce Developnent and the
Uni versity of Al aska.

8:02:12 AM

Dl ANE BARRANS, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on
Post secondary Education, said the 2012 Alaska Performance
Schol arship (APS) Report exam nes higher education and career
readi ness. She said the APS Report task force has provided
information that wll allow for ongoing strategic resource
depl oynment and perfornmance revi ew.

8:04: 20 AM

BRI AN RAE, Assistant Director, Research and Analysis, Al aska
Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education (ACPE), said the APS
Report reflects one senester of recipients’ post secondary
performance and additional measur enent data wll becone
avai lable in future years. He said the report presents eligible
students' acceptance percentages, denographics, award |evels and
the APS effect on academ c performance.

MR. RAE said 906 Academ c Year 2011 (AY1ll) students received the
APS and the Anchorage district had the highest acceptance |eve
at 40 percent. He said district APS eligibility rates ranged
from29 to 40 percent.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2012



8:07:41 AM

MR. RAE said the Southcentral region had the highest percentage
of APS eligible graduates at 31.7 percent and the Far North
region had the |owest percentage at 11.4 percent. He said the
Interior and Far North regions had the highest percentage of
el i gible graduates that accepted the APS at nearly 50 percent.

8. 08: 50 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if Kodiak was in the Sout hwest Regi on.

MR. RAE answered yes.

8:09: 30 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked about student privacy concerns for the
st udy.

8:10: 02 AM

MR. RAE said sone data is regulated under the Fam |y Education
Rights & Privacy Act (FERPA), e.g., graduation announcenents are
considered public and on the receipt of funds is considered
private. He said the Chief Privacy Oficer from the US
Department of Education was contacted to clarify reporting
paraneters. He said the departnent is taking a conservative
approach to |listing personal data.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Pelican District had graduates in
AY11.

8:11: 21 AM
MR RAE answer ed no.

8:12: 01 AM

MR. RAE revealed eligibility data by gender and race: 50.25
percent female, 37.9 percent Caucasian, 8.3 percent Anmerican
| ndi an/ Al aska Native (Native). He said there was no difference
in gender or ethnic groups when eligible candi dates accepted the
APS.

MR. RAE said in AYll: 8064 students graduated from public high
schools, 30 percent attended in-state postsecondary schools and
17 percent attended out-of-state institutions. He said 83
percent of APS eligible students versus 33 percent APS
ineligible students attended postsecondary schools. He said APS
"Level -1" eligible students were nore likely to attend out-of-
state schools, "Level-2" and "Level-3" students were nore likely

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 3- February 3, 2012



to attend in-state schools. He said Wshington and O egon
attracted the nost out-of-state students.

8:14:46 AM

MR. RAE said the University of Alaska (UA) System attracted the
nmost APS students; 505 attended UA- Anchorage (UAA), 339 attended
UA- Fai rbanks (UAF) and 46 attended UA-Southeast (UAS). He said
the majority of students enrolled in fulltinme, bachelor degree
programs and received an average of $3402 out of the nearly $3
mllion APS award pool. He noted that the higher percentage of
Level -1 eligible students leaving the state had an effect on
awar d expendi t ures.

8:17: 02 AM
CO CHAIR MEYER asked why a higher nunber of Level-1 eligible
students attended out-of-state school s.

MR. RAE answered that he does not have that data but specul ated
that sonme eligible students may have preferred an out of state
school or decided prior to the APS announcenent.

8:18: 27 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if the APS intent is to try and keep the
bri ghtest Al aska students in the state.

8:18:51 AM

M5. BARRANS responded that data from the Free Application
Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) filings showed nore Level -1 students
were from affluent famlies which allowed for greater school
choice. She said there also may have been an inpact on school
choice when initial funding for the APS was not known.

8:19:39 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if the ACPE would report student
perceptions of the UA versus out-of-state institutions.

8:20: 06 AM

MR. RAE answered no. He said general student comments would be
provi ded. He suggested that the UA may be better suited to
provide a report on students' perceptions on out-of-state
school s.

8:21: 06 AM

MR. RAE referenced preparatory courses taken by AY1l H gh School
Graduates attending the UA: 880 APS-Eligible, 27.4 percent had
attenpted preparatory courses at an average of 1.0 credit hour
out of 12.6 total <credit hours; 2751 APS-Ineligible, 64.8

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 3, 2012



percent had attenpted preparatory courses at an average of 2.9
credit hours out of 8.4 total credit hours.

SENATOR DAVIS asked how many APS students had taken prep
cour ses.

MS. BARRANS answered 241 APS students.

8:27.37 AM
SENATOR FRENCH said he was distressed that 27 percent of APS
students had taken preparatory courses.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked if preparatory and remnedi al have the sane
meani ng.

M5. BARRANS answered yes and that the nunber of APS students
taking renmedial courses will decline as academ c rigor is phased
in for APS eligibility.

8:28: 53 AM
SENATOR FRENCH said he agreed that APS students taking renedia
courses should decrease in the future.

M5. BARRANS noted that math was the primary preparatory course
taken by APS eligible students.

8:30: 30 AM

MR. RAE said the UA provided AYll data on "entering classes"
starting from AY05- AYO7; approximately 30 percent did not return
for their second year and 40 percent did not return for their
third year. He said a student not returning does not nean a
student has dropped out; many my have attended UA to earn
credits and transferred to another school. He said returning
student percentages could go up due to the APS incentive for
students to stay in Alaska. He said 32 percent received a degree
from AYO5 entrance and 14 percent from AYO7 entrance. He noted
that six years is the typical time to attain a four year degree.
He said APS students should increase the percentage that
graduate in four years.

8:32: 30 AM

MR. RAE said 357 APS-Eligible students responded to a survey: 90
percent were pursuing a degree, 25 percent were attending out-
of -state schools; 66 percent said the APS affected their
decision to attend school in Alaska, 20 percent attending out-
of -state schools considered the APS and 25 percent said the APS
i nfluenced their decision to pursue a postsecondary educati on.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2012



8:34:26 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS commented that a high percentage of eligible
graduates did not accept the APS and he hoped nore students take
advantage of the APS in future years. He said people tend to
stay within a few hundred mles of where +they go to
post secondary school .

8:35:11 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked to verify that students who attended UA
their first two years, only 50 percent return for their third
year.

MR. RAE answered that 57 to 60 percent return for their third
year. He said it is the hope through the APS incentive that nore
students return.

8: 35: 54 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER commented that |osing the brightest kids to out-
of -state colleges and only half of the students return to the UA
after two years bothers him He said typical retention rates at
other colleges are 70 to 80 percent.

SENATOR STEVENS asked to clarify Native student eligibility and
program accept ance percentage rates for the APS.

8:37:20 AM
MR. RAE answered that once a student acquired APS eligibility,
gender or race had little to do with acceptance rates.

8.38:21 AM

SENATOR FRENCH conmented that UAA is very alert to the returning
student nunbers and is trying to inprove rates by increased
social nedia use to connect and engage first and second year
st udent s.

State Board of Educati onAnnual Report to the Legislature

CO CHAI R THOVAS announced the next item of business would be the
annual report fromthe Al aska State Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

8:39:51 AM

ESTHER J. COX, Chair, Alaska State Board of Education & Early
Devel opnent, reviewed the annual report and said the board
adopted APS anendnents and established mninum eligibility
criteria for grade point average, test scores and qualifying

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 6- February 3, 2012



courses. She said a grace period was enacted to allow AYll and
AY12 graduates an opportunity to attain the APS after the new
regul ations were adopted. She said supplenenting school
curriculum with online courses wll especially assist rural
community students to qualify for the APS.

8:43: 05 AM

M5. COX said graduates taking the SAT or ACT exans increased in
2011 to 85 percent from 77 percent in 2010. She said districts
are reporting nore students have enrolled in science and math
cour ses.

8:43:46 AM

M5. COX said the board approved anendnents and acconmodati ons on
the Al aska Supplenent for W rkKeys Assessnment; a career ready
test given to all eleventh graders, test results nmay be used for
APS eligibility. She said the Individualized Education Program
(1EP) assesses eleventh grade students wth significant
cognitive disabilities and det er m nes Wor kKeys testing
conpetency. She said the board clarified appropriate use of
accommodations for students wth disabilities and I|imted
English proficiency. She said the board adopted the English
Proficiency Standards from the Wrld-C ass Instructional Design
& Assessnment (WDA) consortium for English |anguage | earners.
She said of AY1ll WorkKeys students, 85 percent earned a National
Career Readi ness Certificate.

M5. COX said the board extended the anobunt of tinme districts may
take to distribute test results from the Standards-Based
Assessnent (SBA) and the H gh School G aduation Qualifying
Exam nati on (HSGQE); the previous deadline was 20 days. She said
the board anended two regulations regarding state assessnents
and adopted revised participation guidelines for students wth
disabilities. She said the board clarified that the SBA would be
used for calculating the Adequate Yearly Progress (AYP) Report
under the federal education law known as the No Child Left
Behi nd Act (NCLB).

8.46: 25 AM

M5. COX said the board voted to reconmend keeping the HSGQE, a
test that provides students with a basic-skills baseline and
information to adjust curriculum She said AYll HSGQE results
for tenth grade students: 83 percent passed reading and 71
percent passed witing and 76 percent passed math.

8:47:44 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 3, 2012



M5. COX said the board anended AYP reporting regulations to
allow districts to include and take credit for students who
successfully exited the Limted English Proficiency Program She
said three <changes to the AYP calculation inproved 2011
Proficiency Results. She noted that the federal governnent
requi res 100 percent proficiency by 2014 for NCLB

8:48:43 AM

M5. COX said the board adopted an anendnent which requires
teachers who are nmoving from a Three Year Certificate to a
Professional Five Year Renewable Certificate to have been
enpl oyed as a teacher for at |least two years. She said the board
adopted an anmendnent that wll no longer require educators
seeking Provisional Two Year Admnistrative, Special Education
Adm ni strative and Special Services certificates to conplete six
senmester hours of credit.

8:49: 44 AM
M5. COX said the board agreed to change the nanme of "Vocationa
Education" to "Career and Technical Education,”" to require

districts to nake the blank forns used in teacher admnistrative
eval uations available to the public and to require district
enpl oyment applicants to disclose prior teaching experience in
Al aska.

She said the board approved addi ng teacher preparation progranms
for K-5 math at UAS, an el ementary endorsenent at Al aska Pacific
University and added an endorsenent in Career and Techni cal
Education Certificate program at UAA

M5. COX said Alaska's Type-M Teaching Certificate nust be
initiated by a district that wants to hire an industry
professional who has not conpleted a teacher preparation
program She said the Departnent of Law is reviewing a
regulation that wll require Career and Technical Education
(CTE) endorsed, Type-M teachers to pass the Praxis | Conpetency
Test to denonstrate reading, witing and nmath proficiency within
one year of obtaining their certificate. She said in order to
renew a Type-M Limted CTE Five Year Certificate; the |ocal
school board nust submt an application which contains evidence
of the following: three senmesters of credit hours related to the
applicant's enploynent, 135 hours of work experience in a
specialty field outside of work with students and a statenent of
satisfactory teaching performance. She said specialty teachers
in Al aska Native Language or Culture and ROTC are exenpt.

8:51:48 AM

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 8- February 3, 2012



M5. COX said the board now requires teachers recertifying Type-A
Certificates to take credits in subjects related to their
enpl oynent, enroll nment endorsenent area, or program leading to
an endor senent .

She said the board has worked wth educators and industry
representatives to replace the <current Al aska Content and
Performance Standards (ACPS) in reading, witing and math wth
nmore rigorous grade level standards. The focus has been to
ensure that the new standards outline a path for all students to
graduate career and college ready. The new ACPS wi Il be grades
K-12 inclusive and be equal to or nore rigorous than the
Nati onal Conmon Core Standards (NCCS). She said the board wl
take final action in June, 2012 with possible AY16 enactnent.

8:56: 01 AM

M5. COX said graduation rate nethodol ogy changed to reflect the
Federal Uniformity QGuidelines nandate. She said graduation rates
are calculated across a four year span and dropout rates are
cal cul ated independently over a one year period. She said the
graduation rate had inproved from 61 percent in AYO5 to 68
percent in AYll.

8:57: 07 AM

Teacher retention is an issue in rural Al aska;, the majority of
new teachers cone from out-of-state and have to deal with a new
culture and many |eave after their first year. She said the
Al aska Statewide Mentor Project was initiated in 2004 to help
new t eachers becone nore effective within their first two years.
She noted that budget cuts were made to the program | ast year.
She said AY1ll Rural Retention Rates were 84 percent for nentored
teachers and 68 percent for non-nentored teachers. She said a
U S. Department of Education grant will allow the UA to eval uate
how nentoring affects teacher retention and student achi evenent.

8:59: 20 AM
M5. COX said the 2009 Legislature provided $2 mllion for eight
districts to ~create pre-school prograns that incorporate

Al aska's Early Learning Guidelines in ways tailored to their
| ocal conmunities. She said a recent report indicated that many
chil dren showed exceptional growth, but there are still children
preform ng bel ow expectati ons.

She said Third G ade Assessnent inprovenent wll require early
chil dhood involvement that is sustained through the primry
grades. She said in addition to the Early Literacy Plan, the
board proposed the Fam |y Engagenent Plan that includes action

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - O- February 3, 2012



steps for parents, teachers and comunity nenbers. She said
school r eadi ness, parent involvenment and quality teacher
engagenent are the only things that inpact student achievenent.

9:00: 41 AM
The board heard reports on the Alaska System of Support
Activities for Intervention Districts as follows, t hree

districts received departnent intervention due to chronically
low student performance levels and tw districts exited
intervention status after student performance |evels were
sufficiently raised.

9:02: 06 AM

M5. COX said the Al aska Learning Network inproves student
achievenent by providing online courses taught by highly
qualified teachers, structure for collaboration and support,
digital resource access and pr of essi onal devel opnent
opportunities for teachers.

9:02: 53 AM
M5. COX said M. Edgecunbe Hi gh School is a state operated
boarding school I|ocated in Sitka, Al aska; approximtely 400

students, 78 percent are Native. She said the board recently
changed credit requirenments to align student curriculum for APS
eligibility.

M5. COX said board nenbers attended the Anchorage Education
Summit in Novenber to address greater expectations for student
success with school and community nenbers.

9:04: 03 AM

M5. COX said the board's Teacher Quality Conmittee addresses
teacher evaluations tied to student performance for federal
funding. She said the board continues to: nonitor departnent
work with intervention districts, engage in strategic planning,
career and technical education plan inplenentation, continue
work on the new standards and assessnents, monitor and or anend
regul ati ons as needed for the APS.

M5. COX asked the Senate Education Committee to consider
addi tional travel expense funding to allow board nenbers to neet
at M. Edgecunbe and a rural district venue on an annual basis.

9:07: 55 AM

CO-CHAIR MEYER said Senators Davis and French have a bill that
deals with Early Learni ng Cuidelines.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 3, 2012



9: 08: 32 AM
SENATOR DAVIS commented on the Mentor Program funding cuts and
asked if noney was put back into the budget.

M KE HANLEY, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education & Early
Devel opnent, replied no. He said last year the Mentor Programs
budget was reduced from$3 million to $2.25 million.

9:09:46 AM

SENATOR DAVIS conmented on the board' s intent for higher ACPS
versus the NCCS. She asked how students who nove to Al aska woul d
adapt to the higher ACPS.

9:10: 34 AM

M5. COX answered that she believes in higher standards for the
ACPS. She said Massachusetts is a state which adopted standards
above the NCCS.

SENATOR DAVI S sai d Massachusetts adopted the NCCS.

M5. COX answered that she did not know if Massachusetts changed
their standards to neet the NCCS.

9:11:42 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about the board's approach to teacher
eval uati ons.

M5. COX answered that the board's Teacher Quality Conmttee and
the National Education Association-Al aska are addressing teacher
evaluations tied to student performance. She said the board is
considering a statew de evaluation docunent for the 27 percent
of teachers who are teaching courses that are assessed via
student performance.

9:14: 31 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmmittee
neeting at 9:14 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 3, 2012



